1
2

Jordanston Hall (Trefwrdan)

SM919325           OS 25” 1st edition  IX.14            

                                                             Jordanston in Dewsland

Cadw Listed Grade II.   Church also listed Grade II.

(see Langton for family history)

The last Vaughan here was Gwynne Gill who was born in 1776 and died unmarried in 1837. He went to Magdalen, Oxford and was a JP and a HS in 1813.

Leased land for Letterston Chapel

Despite several cousins he left his estate to “his old friend and sole executor” Maj Gen Sir James Cockburn of Langton who erected a memorial to him in the church.

Cockburn had a distinguished military career and died in 1852. He had married the Hon Marianna Devereux, daughter of the 13th Viscount Devereux.

Their daughter Marianna Augusta married Col Sir James John Hamilton (died 1876)

Visit with Pembrokeshire Historic Buildings Trust 18th November 2003

House: Grade II listed but now thoroughly modernised with new windows, wall rendering and painting, and roofing. A very smart house but having lessened historical interest.

The turning circle with its sun dial has disappeared. When the present owners took over it was just an overgrown area. A previous generation recalled the circle and water; there is a muddy area now outside the fence which was once a pond. The present raised circle is a smaller recent creation. There is mature planting here and also in front of the modern farm buidings that one meets on approaching the house.

The ditch (leat?) from SE of the farm and running along the southern border of the graveyard is well maintained for drainage.

Walled Garden:

FJ mentions the walled garden as being 2 acres but area marked on the OS 25 inch maps is 2.675 acres. There is now no trace of the dividing wall(?) nor of any trees or paths. It is all grassed and used as a paddock of the farm.

It is almost square and from the gap at the SW corner, looking up the slope, it does look very large. The owner refers to a cottage at this corner and the map does show a small square building. This was demolished a few years ago to make a moderm ramped access from the concreted farm yard.

The largely intact walls are about 3.5m high and built of slate-like rubblestone fully lined with bricks. The owner says that there is an area of clay close to the buildings and he understands that the bricks, in the 18th century were made on the site and they were clearly bonded to the rather small stones as the wall was built. There is a single depth of brick with a simple stretcher-header-stretcher bonding. At the top there appears to be a course of headers only and some building up of the stones to form a coping; no larger coping stones were seen.

The bricks (not measured) seem to be smaller in each dimension than modern ones; they are heavy, rather rough but showing little erosion, and of a dark red to purple colour. Estimated number used 80,000 – 100,000.  Would brick makers have been brought in from the outside or could the estate itself have manged?

Half way along the south wall is a brick arched foot entrance now blocked up. There is a wider gap, full height, mid-way along the east wall and a larger, no doubt bull-dozed gap, in the west wall.

At several points the brick lining has peeled away and at other places repairs have been made but on the whole the walls are very sound. No glasshouses are shown on the map and no signs can be seen on the walls.

The SE corner is strangely bevelled. A wide brick-arched foot entrance goes into the area to the east of the garden. A slip?  But shown with large trees by 1880. Eastwards again is an avenue of youngish beech with Pembrokeshire hedge banks forming a sort of sunken, but wide, ride which is now used by the cows coming and going to the fields.

The map shows slips at the west side too but this is now field.

The ornate area to the south of the walled garden has been overbuilt with modern farm buildings.

The two older buildings nearest the house are of interest. The more westerly ex-cart shed/coachhouse(?) has three bays with brick arches and both have eaves showing two courses of brick, the uppermost angled at 45 degrees. Slate roofs.

See Francis Jones Pembrokeshire Historian No5 1974
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